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	Q.1
	Will Q&A from this meeting be documented and posted to the CEC EPIC website?

	A.1
	Yes. All solicitation documents will be posted to the CEC website at the following link:
http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-323

	Q.2
	How many on the webinar?

	A.2
	There were 64 participants on the webinar and you can download the list at http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-15-323/

	Q.3
	I was hoping you could share your rationale and supporting research for why a required set-aside for Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises (DVBE) was not included in this solicitation.  I am hoping there is still time to amend the solicitation.

	A.3
	DVBE firms may apply and we encourage their participation in this Grant Funding Opportunity (GFO).  However, grants do not have a provision in statute for DVBE set-aside.

	Q.4
	What are the requirements for the participation of non-USA company (innovative water related technology) in this Solicitation?

	A.4
	There are no restrictions in this solicitation for a non-USA company from participating.  However, please refer to Section II.A.3. regarding registration with the California Secretary of State and being in good standing in order to enter into an agreement with the Energy Commission.    This section states that  any California business entity and non-California business entity that conducts intrastate business in California must register with the California Secretary of State and be in good standing in order to enter into an agreement with the Energy Commission.  If not currently registered with the California Secretary of State, applicants should contact the Secretary of State’s Office as soon as possible. For more information, visit the Secretary of State’s website at: www.sos.ca.gov. See also response to questions 58 and 62.
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	Q.5
	If the technology we want to test is a water conservation technology but has a lower overall energy demand than what it substitutes for, does that qualify as having the energy savings “come from energy efficiency measures" as indicated in page 16 of the application manual?

	A.5
	Yes, if the technology will result in on-site electricity (kWh) savings due to an energy efficiency improvement and the technology is pre-commercial.  See definitions in Section I.B of the application manual.  Load reduction projects that only reduce on-site kW (e.g., demand response), are not eligible. See also response to question 41.

	Q.6
	If kWh use is increased but more than offset by a reduction in therms use, does that qualify as an overall net reduction in energy use? (It says within the solicitation that therm reductions do not qualify, only electricity but Therms savings are listed in the evaluation section on Page 33 of the application manual).

	A.6
	Projects that reduce on-site natural gas use with no on-site electricity reduction are not eligible for this solicitation. If a project saves both on-site electricity and natural gas, the majority of the savings will have to come from electricity savings since the EPIC funds are from electric ratepayers. In addition, on-site electric energy use must NOT increase as a result of the proposed project as indicated in Section II.B.2.

	Q.7
	Does the energy efficiency savings have to be related to the water technology or can the energy efficiency improvements be completely separate to the water savings component of the project?

	A.7
	The energy efficiency and water efficiency technologies must occur at the same demonstration site and have some relationship to each other, such as associated with the manufacturing or treatment process. They cannot be two disparate technologies, such as a water reuse project, coupled with a parking lot lighting controls projects. As indicated in Section I.A of the application manual, applicants must propose deploying an integrated suite of advanced pre-commercial technologies and processes at the demonstration site such that:
· It leads to major reductions in on-site energy use through energy efficiency, 
AND
On-site water reuse or/and on-site reduction of water use or/and production of water that meets drinking water, water recycling or on-site use standards by the State Water Resources Control Board.
See also response to questions 50 and 51.

	Q.8
	If waste heat captured for water heating is used to decrease energy consumption, must it be shown to offset specifically electrical water heating then?

	A.8
	Yes. 

	Q.9
	Would calculated avoided pumping energy for a reuse/recycle water application count for energy savings?

	A.9
	Yes, if the avoided pumping energy occurred on-site at the water recycling/reuse facility.  Pumping energy savings not occurring on-site (e.g., embedded energy) will not count towards energy savings in this solicitation.

	Q.10
	In quantifying energy savings, can we count the embedded energy in water?

	A.10
	No.

	Q.11
	Do you count upstream energy—such as the energy associated with product manufacturing?

	A.11
	No. Energy efficiency measures must reduce electricity use on-site.
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	Q.12
	For a project to be classified as being in a disadvantaged community, does it have to reside in a SB 535 area or can it be half a mile from the border as long as it services a disadvantaged community.

	A.12
	To obtain the optional scoring points for disadvantaged communities (see Scoring Criteria 9, Section IV.F. of the application manual), the demonstration site must be in a disadvantaged community and must justify how the project will benefit the disadvantaged community. As indicated in Section I.B of the application manual, disadvantaged communities are defined as areas representing census tracts scoring in the top 25 percent in CalEnviroScreen 2.0. Please use the following link to ensure your project is located within a geographic area defined as a disadvantaged community: 
· http://oehha.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=dae2fb1e42674c12a04a2b302a080598

	Q.13
	Does a project have to be in a disadvantaged community to be eligible for the points? Or can the project be adjacent to a disadvantaged community with benefits flowing to the disadvantaged community?

	A.13
	Please see response to question 12
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	Q.14
	Can the energy efficiency measures implemented to achieve the overall energy reduction be commercially available measures in order to demonstrate a pre-commercial water conservation measure?

	A.14
	No. If the energy efficiency technology is already commercially available it will not be eligible. 

	Q.15
	Can a technology that is commercially available on the energy efficiency side but is considered pre-commercial on the water side be eligible?

	A.15
	See response to question 14.

	Q.16
	The manual states, “technologies must be pre-commercial but may have been demonstrated at a small scale in the targeted sectors.” 
a. Please clarify the meaning of “small scale” with some examples. 
b. If the proposed demonstration site is the same site used in a prior pilot trial of the proposed pre-commercial technology, what would constitute a “full scale” deployment of the technology versus a “small scale” demonstration of the technology?

	A.16
	a. Small scale testing can be either of the following: 1) a bench-scale or pilot scale tests of the proposed technology in a laboratory to inform the full sized unit,  OR 2) testing that occurred on a small portion of the production line in the affected industry/commercial facility for a limited period to show proof of concept.  An example of the latter would be testing that occurred on one of the production lines in an industrial facility. 

b. Full scale deployment is the installation, operation and performance monitoring of the technology, such as for at least 12 months in actual industrial or commercial facility, or water/wastewater treatment facility.  The full scale deployment can affect the entire facility or one of the processing/production lines.  The deployment should result in obtaining sufficient operating data to verify the direct energy and water efficiency improvements of the technology and potential application to other similar facilities.
The demonstration site can be the same as the test site and in the project narrative. Under Technical Merit and Need, you will discuss why the project is beyond bench scale (refer to Section II.B.2.b and Attachment 4 of the application manual). Also, the equipment used in a full scale deployment will have the size and capacity as the standard commercially available units.

	Q.17
	We have a laundry system that saves 80% water, 50% chemicals, and 50% of energy when compared to a standard washer.  Our product is available for sale in California but is in small scale deployment at this time.  We would use the grant dollars for technology demonstration, full scale deployment, and market facilitation but our core technology is commercially available.  Would we be eligible for grant dollars given that our core technology is commercially available?  

	A.17
	Based on your description, it appears that your technology could be considered pre-commercial since it has not been deployed in large scale in California and has not reached commercial maturity.  Please discuss why you believe the technology meets the definition of pre-commercial in the Technical Merit and Need section of Attachment 4, item c.  Besides being a being a pre-commercial technology, your project must also meet all the requirements of the solicitation. 
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	Q.18
	Who can provide match?

	A.18
	Match funds may be provided by the Applicant, project host-site, subcontractor(s), project partners, stakeholders or other public/private entities. Please see Sections 1.F.2 and III.C.11 of the application manual for additional information.

	Q.19
	Can I submit two applications for the same technology used in two different sectors?

	A.19
	As indicated in Section II.B.2., if multiple applications are submitted using the same company or brand for the major equipment/systems, only the highest ranking application will be considered for funding. For instance, if there are two separate applications that use the same company or brand for the major equipment/systems to be installed in two different sectors, only the one with the highest ranking will be considered.  However, an application can include multiple demonstration sites that use the same company or brand of equipment, up to the maximum award amount. 
If an applicant submits multiple applications and they are for the same project (e.g., tasks described in the Scope of Work, Attachment 6 are similar), then only the first application screened by the Energy Commission will be eligible for funding. Refer to Section IV.E. Screening Criteria 3.

	Q.20
	Can an end use customer get energy efficiency rebates/incentives when participating in this project? If yes, could these monies be used for cost share?

	A.20
	No, energy efficiency rebates/incentives that target commercially available equipment or technologies cannot be used as match funds for this GFO because commercially available technologies are not eligible for this solicitation.  However, utility funds that focus specifically on pre-commercial technologies, such as IOU Emerging Technology Programs, can be used for match funding.

	Q.21
	Can applicants raise cash match via state/federal renewable loan programs?

	A.21
	A loan cannot be used as match if any of the following occur:  a) the loan is contingent and not already approved at the time of the application (see  Section I.F.2),  b) the loan targets commercially available equipment or technologies that is the focus of your project and does not meet the eligibility requirements of the solicitation (see Section II).  If the loan is used to finance pre-commercial technologies that are the focus of your project, then the loan can be used as match but only the loan payment amount that coincides with the grant term. For example, if the annual payment for the loan is $5,000 and the grant term is 3 years, then only $15,000 can be included as match.



	[bookmark: _Toc451338781]Funding

	Q.22
	Explain the funding maximum and minimum

	A.22
	The maximum Energy Commission grant is $2M, and the minimum grant is $500K. The application must show a minimum project size of at least $500,000 (excluding match).  The project cost can exceed $2 million but the grant award will not exceed $2 million.
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	Q.23
	Are agricultural projects eligible, since it is referenced in the EPIC investment plan?

	A.23
	No. Projects associated with agricultural operations are not eligible for this solicitation. See addendum Sections II.B. for definition of agricultural operations and II.B.3 for examples of Ineligible projects.

	Q.24
	Is GFO-15-323 funding open to agricultural projects resulting in water & energy savings?

	A.24
	Please see response to question 23.

	Q.25
	Are urban agricultural production projects that reduce water and energy use versus existing technologies commercially used eligible for this solicitation?

	A.25
	No. This is not the focus of this solicitation.

	Q.26
	We are in the process of developing a wireless pressure sensor, to be used for row crop irrigation. The purpose of the sensor is to allow variable frequency drives (VFDs) to operate in a closed-loop fashion on local pressure readings at specific irrigation blocks, allowing for very precise irrigation control. This product is expected to reduce the amount of water required for irrigation, along with electrical energy savings at the VFD. CEC GFO-15-323 is formally aimed at "Commercial, Industrial or Water / Wastewater Sectors". Could you please clarify whether this GFO is applicable to the project described above? If it is not, can you recommend a GFO which is applicable to the project?

	A.26
	Agriculture and irrigation projects are not eligible under this GFO.  To find out about future solicitations, here are some links:
1. Sign up for the Energy Commission’s server list to be notified when future solicitations would be released: http://www.energy.ca.gov/listservers/.  In particular, sign up for the Opportunity lists under the Commission General List Category.  You’ll be notified of all the Energy Commission’s opportunities that come up in the future.

2. Review the research web page and look for funding opportunities: http://www.energy.ca.gov/research/ 

3. Other state and federal programs also provide funding for agricultural irrigation projects such as the California Department of Food and Agriculture (SWEEP), the California Department of Water Resources (Water Energy Grants), and the US Department of Agriculture (Conservation Innovation Grants).  Here are links to their programs:
a. Food and Agriculture: https://www.cdfa.ca.gov/oefi/sweep/ 
b. Water Resources: http://www.water.ca.gov/waterenergygrant/ 
c. USDA: http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/national/programs/financial/cig/

	Q.27
	We are going to use a sub irrigation innovation to show 50% energy savings from landscape water pumps. The greywater generated from a commercial site such as a hotel, Multi-tenant housing, and/or commercial laundry will possibly generate more greywater than the commercial site will require for landscaping.

a. Would a hotel on a golf course be considered one on-site location?
b. Would a corporate campus with multiple buildings, such a Facebook campus, Apple Campus or SCE Irwindale campus be considered one site?
c. Would a high school or college campus be considered one site?
d. Can the onsite be adjacent parcels if Municipal code (example: San Francisco & Los Angeles) allows for greywater transfers to adjacent properties, such as a park, sports field, freeway landscape or/and street scape?  The argument is that, the adjacent property clause will allow full on-site energy savings potential to be realized and make the innovation(s) financially attractive for commercial applications (hotels, commercial laundry).   

	A.27
	Irrigation projects, such as the ones described, are not eligible under this GFO.  Please refer to question 26 for other solicitations related to water efficiency.  

	Q.28
	We are working with an agricultural customer to help reduce their energy and water consumption in the Central Valley. They have a lot of farm units that cover multiple utility service territories, including PG&E, SCE, and WAPA. In some cases, they have irrigation pumps served by different utilities on the same parcel. Will there be any complications for sites that are served by multiple utilities, or is it simply an eligibility requirement that the site be served by an IOU?

	A.28
	Agricultural irrigation projects are not eligible under this GFO.  Please refer to question 26 for other solicitations related to water efficiency.  Demonstration site eligibility requires that it be served by an electric IOU.

	Q.29
	I have the following questions:
a. Are agricultural irrigation and pumping eligible for this solicitation?
b. Would a project that uses environmental sensor data to improve water use efficiency, therefore reducing water use and on-site pump energy use, be eligible?

	A.29
	a. Agriculture and irrigation projects are not eligible under this GFO.  Please refer to question 26 for other solicitations related to water efficiency.
b. In general, use of sensor data can be a component of a project but it must result in direct actions that reduce water and energy use and cannot be based on voluntary actions. 
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	Q.30
	I have the following questions:
a. Is a pumping facility at an Irrigation District an acceptable project demonstration site? I would expect they are in the municipal classification, but do serve some agricultural customers. I do not believe the pump station we are addressing serves agriculture.
b. If a VFD is required for the control system metering and monitoring project that we are proposing, is it acceptable to request it be financed by the grant. 

	A.30
	a. Demonstration site(s) must be within the service territory of one of the three investor-owned utilities (PG&E, SCE or SDG&E). An Irrigation District that is served by one of these electric IOUs would be eligible, regardless of customers served.  However, an irrigation district that is also an electric utility (e.g., Modesto Irrigation District) would not be eligible.
b. VFD’s are commercially available equipment and must not be the sole source of the on-site electric energy efficiency project as the project must show technological advancement and benefits beyond current technology.  If VFDs are a part of the pre-commercial technology to be demonstrated, then the VFDs may be purchased with Energy Commission funds as equipment/materials for the proposed innovative energy and water efficiency projects.

	Q.31
	Does the technology need to be demonstrated at the likely future implementation site, or could an equivalent, convenient, cost effective site be used for demonstration under GFO 15-323?

	A.31
	Demonstration site(s) must be in the service territory of one of the three investor-owned utilities (PG&E, SCE or SDG&E) AND in the intended end-use market(s) for the proposed technology.  We will include this clarification in the addendum in Section II.B.2.b, Technical Approach.
As indicated in Section II.B.2 of the application manual, the demonstration must occur in one of the following: a) installation in at least one industrial or commercial facility, or b) installation in at least one water/wastewater treatment facility.  Please also see response to question 16 regarding large scale and small scale.

	Q.32
	Do demonstration locations need to be identified in the proposal?

	A.32
	Yes. Applicants must identify the demonstration site on Attachments 1 and 8 and include commitment letter(s) signed by an authorized representative of the proposed demonstration site (Attachment 11). Please also see Section III.C.11 of the solicitation manual.
If no demonstration site is provided, the application will be disqualified, per Screening Criteria 6 in Section IV.E. of the application manual.  
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	Q.33
	Are data centers eligible as demonstration sites? Would an energy and water saving project in data centers apply?

	A.33
	Yes.  Water and energy saving projects at data centers are eligible.

	Q.34
	Regarding demonstration sites.  The application manual states that full scale deployment is defined as one full size industrial/commercial facility and one full size water/wastewater facility. Could you please confirm if there is supposed to be an 'OR' between those two line items?

	A.34
	Yes. You are correct and we will post this in an addendum (See Section II.B.2.a).
Full scale deployment is defined as follow:
· Installation in at least one industrial or commercial facility, or
· Installation in at least one water/wastewater treatment facility

	Q.35
	Does the project have to include a water/wastewater treatment technology? Or is it okay for a technology or process that somehow reduces water use?

	A.35
	Applications do not have to include a water/wastewater treatment technology.  However, applicants must propose to deploy an integrated suite of advanced pre-commercial technologies and processes at the demonstration site such that it
· Leads to major reductions in on-site energy use through energy efficiency 
AND
· Results in on-site water reuse, on-site reduction of water use,  or production of water that meets drinking water, water recycling or on-site use standards by the State Water Resources Control Board
Refer to Section I.A. of the application manual.  

	Q.36
	If the technology is a new system design using proven stand-alone components arranged in a new way, would it still need to have previously acquired bench top data?

	A.36
	Yes. Applicants are required to provide 500 hours of independent or peer-reviewed performance data that show potential for significant energy and water savings. Please refer to Section II.B.2.b. of the application manual. 

	Q.37
	We are proposing to reduce HVAC and cooling tower load 80% and cooling tower blowdown by a factor of 2 using direct to chip data center liquid cooling. Is this an eligible technology?

	A.37
	Yes. Data center energy and water efficiency projects are eligible if the application meets solicitation requirements. 

	Q.38
	Are pressure reducing turbines considered pre commercial technology?

	A.38
	No. Pressure reducing turbines are commercially available technology. 

	Q.39
	Would a pre-commercial non-osmosis onsite water treatment process that converts grey/blackwater to usable water for an evaporative cooling system which would then reduce electricity load on the same site for refrigeration qualify as an eligible project type?

	A.39
	Yes

	Q.40
	Would a project that uses big data that impacted energy and water savings be eligible?

	A.40
	Yes, if the project resulted in direct on-site electricity and water savings and was not based on providing information to the end user and for them to take action.

	Q.41
	Would a technology that reduces water use and lowers energy demand (kW) be eligible, or does it have to be kWh savings?

	A.41
	The technology must have electricity (kWh) savings.  Load or demand reduction can be a component but it cannot be the only benefit.

	Q.42
	The manual states, “All demonstrations must include advanced energy efficiency and water saving projects that must result in a direct reduction of electricity use at the demonstration site.  Full scale deployment is defined as follows:
· Installation in at least one industrial or commercial facility,
· Installation in at least one water/wastewater treatment facility.”
Please clarify whether both of the bulleted items are required in a proposed project or does just one suffice.

	A.42
	Please refer to question 34.

	Q.43
	Does the water technology have to actually treat water and produce recycled water for reuse? The use of the word “reduction” in the solicitation implies that maybe the project can include water technologies that reduce water use and not necessarily produce treated water for reuse.

	A.43
	Projects must reduce on-site electric energy use AND at least one of the following:
· Reduce overall on-site water use (water efficiency)
· Water re-use (may or may not require water treatment)
· Water recycling (may or may not require water treatment)
· Water production for on-site or regional use (with treatment)
It is NOT a mandatory requirement of this GFO to ONLY produce water from the treatment of water/wastewater. See also response to question 35.

	Q.44
	I would like to verify if a hybrid cooling technology which is not a water treatment technology, but can reduce both water and energy consumption is suitable for your GFO-15-323 solicitation.  

	A.44
	Hybrid cooling technologies that meet the on-site energy and water efficiency requirements of the solicitation are eligible.  It is NOT a mandatory requirement of this GFO to ONLY produce water from the treatment of water/wastewater.  As indicated in the response to question 43, reduction in overall on-site water use would also be eligible.

	Q.45
	We are looking at a project that recovers condensate and waste heat from exhaust.  The condensation could be fed back into the process water usage and the waste heat used to preheat process water.  Does the waste heat energy have to offset electrical heating on-site as opposed to natural gas heating to qualify for the grant?

	A.45
	Yes. The main energy savings from your project must result in on-site electricity reductions.  Natural gas savings can be a component but it cannot be the sole source of the energy savings.  See also response to question 6.

	Q.46
	I have the following questions:
a. Embedded energy:
1. Can on-site embedded energy savings from water reductions count towards the required energy savings? For example, energy savings from reduced water and wastewater pumping requirements in an industrial processing facility.
2. How about reduced well water pumping requirements for facilities that have an on-site water well. 
3. How about reduced energy requirements associated with lower flows into the wastewater treatment system if the facility has its own on-site treatment facility.
b. I also want to submit a general comment about the requirement for 500-hours of time-stamped energy and water data. This is a very difficult thing to come by – especially for a water/wastewater treatment technology that is pre-commercial and not yet deployed at full scale. My recommendation would be to request other justifications and/or supporting documentation to prove the validity of the technology and potential performance for achieving water/energy savings.

	A.46
	a. If the energy efficiency savings occurs on- site and will directly reduce the electricity consumption of the industrial facility, then this will count towards the required electrical energy efficiency savings. For instance, if an industrial facility operates its own well which is the source of water for the facility, and a new process reduces the pumping energy and water use associated with the well, then this will count towards the required electrical energy savings.  However, if an industrial facility receives water from a public or private water agency, then the energy associated with getting that water to your facility (also known as embedded energy) will not count. Energy savings will count if it directly reduces the electrical energy use of the demonstration site.
1. Can on-site embedded energy savings from water reductions count towards the required energy savings? For example, energy savings from reduced water and wastewater pumping requirements in an industrial processing facility.  Based on this example provided, the answer is yes.
2. Or reduced well water pumping requirements for facilities that have an on-site water well? Based on this this example, yes.
3. Or reduced energy requirements associated with lower flows into the wastewater treatment system if the facility has its own on-site treatment facility?  Yes, if the wastewater treatment facility is at the demonstration site and the on-site electrical reductions can be determined.

b. The purpose of the 500 hours of performance testing is to verify that the technology is ready for deployment in an actual industrial, commercial or water/wastewater facility.  The demonstration/deployment phase requires that the technology be beyond bench scales with sufficient data to substantiate that this technology is ready for large scale deployment. The 500 hours does not have to be consecutive.  

	Q.47
	The GFO states that projects should deploy technologies resulting in major reductions in on-site energy use through energy efficiency and on-site water reuse, reduction and/or production.
We are considering a project at a demonstration facility that, for regulatory reasons, will need to upgrade to an energy intensive process in the near future.  If a project were to demonstrate the efficacy of a low energy alternative that could avoid future energy and water use increases, would it be applicable under GFO 15-323?

	A.47
	Section I.A. and Section II.B.2.b (Impacts and Benefits for California IOU Ratepayer) indicates that the energy efficiency and water saving project must not result in a net increase in use by the demonstration facility.  As the proposed technology will increase energy use it will not be eligible. 
Additionally, regulatory compliance projects are typically using commercially available systems which are not eligible for this solicitation.

	Q.48
	Are smart readers eligible for funding under the program? The smart readers considered would be new to California, never previously implemented in CA. The smart readers would provide real-time information to customers through a customized technology accessible to customers on their phones. Water savings and energy savings are be supported by a study. 

	A.48
	Smart readers, as described, would not be eligible if the focus is to provide information to customers.

	Q.49
	I have the following questions:
a. For a demonstration project at a water treatment facility, does the energy and water efficiency have to be associated with the water treatment process?  
b. Can the energy and water efficiency be associated with more efficient use of pumps and the pumping system, using a pre-commercial software?

	A.49
	a. The energy and water efficiency projects should be related and not two disparate projects. For instance, a water treatment process improvement coupled with a water reuse or recycling project would be eligible.  See response to question 7.
b.  If the software program was directly linked to energy using systems and it resulted in actual reductions in on-site electricity use and water efficiency benefits, then this type of project would be eligible.

	Q.50
	Must the demonstration technology be one technology that results in both energy and water savings, or can two different technologies (i.e., one energy efficiency and one water efficiency) be deployed at the water or wastewater facility demonstration site?

	A.50
	It could be one or multiple technologies.  However, the technologies must be deployed at the same demonstration site and synergies between both systems must be explained. See response to question 7.

	Q.51
	Would a technology that results in energy and water efficiency at a conventional water treatment plant (sand filtration) be eligible for funding or does the treatment process need to be an ‘advanced’ process?

	A.51
	Pre-commercial technologies that increase the water and electric energy efficiencies at an existing conventional water treatment plant are eligible. However, upgrades of the treatment plant using commercially available technologies would not be an eligible project.

	Q.52
	Our technology provides a 50% reduction in hot water heating energy and 80% reduction in overall water usage for the application in which it is used. Most of our target commercial/industrial facilities use natural gas water heating; therefore, in these locations the on-site energy savings will be natural gas savings. However, some portion of the potential target facilities in the state may use electric water heating. For those facilities, the same reduction in energy use would be achieved as electricity savings. In either type of facility, the reduction in overall water usage will provide electricity savings via the water-energy nexus.
Although our field trials and target demonstration site(s) would achieve on-site energy savings in the form of natural gas water heating savings, would our technology be eligible for consideration based on the potential to achieve the equivalent amount of savings at other facilities throughout the state that use electric water heating?

	A.52
	If your technology only results in natural gas savings at the target demonstration sites, it would not be eligible for this solicitation (see also response to question 6). The embedded energy in water, that is energy associated with the transport, conveyance and treatment of water outside of your facility, will not be counted towards the on-site electrical savings.   Since your target customers are those with natural gas water heating, this solicitation may not be a good fit for your technology. We will have upcoming solicitations focused on natural gas research. You can get updated information by doing the following:
· Sign up for the Energy Commission’s server list to be notified when future solicitations on this topic would be released: http://www.energy.ca.gov/listservers/ .  In particular, sign up for the Opportunity lists under the Commission General List Category.  You’ll be notified of all the Energy Commission’s opportunities that come up in the future.
· Review the research web page and look for funding opportunities at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/research/ 

	Q.53
	Our energy/water savings technology serves the California dairy market that is predominately located in the CA Central Valley.  Would a project that improves the energy efficiency and reduces the dependence on groundwater for the dairies’ refrigeration systems be eligible? 

	A.53
	No.  Projects associated with dairies are considered agricultural operations and are not eligible for this solicitation.  Please see addendum, Sections I.B, Key Words, and II.B.3, Ineligible Projects. 

	Q.54
	Our energy/water savings technology is established in the high tech market sector. However, the same technology has less than 1% market penetration in the dairy market because results need to be demonstrated and the installation base needs to be educated. 
a. Would this type of project be eligible for the solicitation?
b. Could you confirm a technology defined as pre-commercial within a specific market segment will qualify for this grant solicitation? 

	A.54
	a. Yes. This technology would be eligible. 
b. Pre-commercial technologies can include technologies that have been tested in one sector but not in another.  Please see definition of Pre-commercial in Section I.B. of the application manual.

	Q.55
	We would like to propose a water/energy savings project that would also qualify for an IOU energy incentive through a statewide customized retrofit program.  The customer would still provide enough matching funding so that they would fully qualify for that program.  The intent of the grant would be to induce early adopters with the goal of spurring the rest of the market to take similar action.  Our payment, as the recipient of the grant, would come directly from claiming utility incentives (acting as the project sponsor), which is outside the Grant process, not through Energy Commission Funds or Match Share.
a. This utility incentive that we receive would include profit for our company since it is tied to our typical rates to document project influences and energy/demand savings (before and after the project). These costs (and subsequently our payment) would not be visible on the budget sheet (Att 7). Could you confirm that this is an appropriate strategy?

	A.55
	With the limited information, it appears that this project as described would be ineligible for the following reasons:
· As indicated in the response to question 20, technologies that are eligible for IOU rebates are considered commercial technologies and are not pre-commercial, and therefore not eligible for this solicitation.  
· It is unclear how the grant funds will be used and what is actually being funded.
· It appears that some costs might be hidden. All funding sources, including match, associated with your project. You indicate that some items like utility incentives will occur outside of the grant process but will be used to reimburse your company for the project.  All costs associated with the project must be identified in the budget forms.  
· It is unclear how the benefits will be documented, as required by the M&V requirements discussed in Section II.B.2 and II.B.5 of the solicitation manual. 
· It is unclear whether the application will have demonstration sites identified—since you indicate that the purpose of the grant is to “induce early adopters with the goal of spurring the rest of the market.” This statement seems to imply that demonstration sites will come after the grant award. This is not possible and applications without demonstration sites will be disqualified—see response to question 32.

	Q.56
	If the demonstration would increase  energy load at the specific site, but would demonstrate advanced, innovative water and energy efficiency improvements as compared to existing technology and will lead to scaling-up of the technology throughout the state, would this be eligible under the current solicitation? 

	A.56
	The project does not appear to be eligible for this solicitation for the following reasons: 
a. the project as described appears to be a prototype demonstration, rather than a full scale demonstration since you will be scaling up the technology if successful. Prototype demonstrations are not the focus of this solicitation. 
b. the technology will increase energy load at the demonstration site and this would make the project ineligible for this solicitation as indicated in Sections I.A. and II.B.2.b.  See also response to question 47.

	Q.57
	If the project included removing the current, energy-intense/high water use at another site – thus resulting in a net energy and water savings, would this be considered eligible?

	A.57
	No.  The energy savings must occur at the demonstration site. The project can have benefits to other sites, but the predominant energy savings will have to be at the demonstration site.
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	Q.58
	Can you define the scoring division category of "EPIC Funds spent in California?” For example, if an applicant is using subcontractors, out-of state initially, and then will be transferring all other operations to a disadvantaged California community. Will this hurt the applicants overall scoring?

	A.58
	EPIC Funds Spent in California are defined in Section IV.F, scoring criteria 6 which states:
“Spent in California” means that: (1) Funds under the “Direct Labor” category and all categories calculated based on direct labor in the budget attachments (Prime and Subcontractor Labor Rates) are paid to individuals who pay California state income taxes on wages received for work performed under the agreement; and (2) Business transactions (e.g., material and equipment purchases, leases, rentals, and contractual work) are entered into with a business located in California. 
The Energy Commission will evaluate the EPIC Funds Spent in California, based on your current situation at the time of application submittal.  We cannot provide credit for future activities, such as future transfers of work to California. If your subcontractors are out-of-state at the time of application, then future transfers to California will not count as funds spent in California.
Scoring criteria 6 has a maximum of 15 points and requires that more than 60 percent of the EPIC funds requested be spent in California in order to score points on this criterion.
Scoring criteria 9 provides points for demonstration projects in disadvantaged communities and benefiting the disadvantaged community. In order to score points on this criterion you must be able to show that both of these requirements are met.
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	Q.59
	Please define commercial maturity.

	A.59
	Commercial maturity means a technology that is: a) commercially available with widespread installations and b) the energy savings and other benefits have been well documented by independent peer analysis.  For instance LED lamps are considered a technology that has reached commercial maturity.

	Q.60
	What is defined as commercial facilities?

	A.60
	Section 1.B. lists examples of commercial facilities including offices, restaurants, retail, food stores, warehouses, schools and colleges, health care, and lodging. For additional information please refer to:
California Commercial End-Use Survey, 2006, http://www.energy.ca.gov/2006publications/CEC-400-2006-005/CEC-400-2006-005.PDF

	Q.61
	What does the term “integrated suite” mean in the context of the statement on page 1 of the solicitation?

	A.61
	Integrated suite refers to energy efficiency and water efficiency technologies that occur at the same demonstration site and have some relationship to each other, such as associated with manufacturing or treatment process. They cannot be two disparate technologies, such as a water reuse project, coupled with a parking lot lighting controls projects. See also response to question 7.
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	Q.62
	I have two questions:
a. Can only California-based companies apply for the grant?
b. Can the CEC funds be spent here in California for only California-based companies?

	A.62
	a. No. Applicants do not have to be California based entities; however the demonstrations sites need to be in California electric IOU service territory.
b. The Energy Commission funds do not have to be spent on California based entities.  However, to receive points under scoring criteria 6, more than 60 percent of the EPIC funds must be spent in California using the definition in this criterion.  This criterion is worth 15 percent of the total possible points. 
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